
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
 
 

810 Vaca Valley Parkway, Suite 203 
Vacaville, California 95688 
Phone (707) 451-6090  FAX (707) 451-6099 
www.scwa2.com 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 
 

DATE: Thursday, May 14, 2015 
   

                         TIME:              6:30 – 7:00 p.m. (City County Coordinating Council meets at 
7:00 p.m.)  

 
PLACE: Berryessa Room 

  Solano County Water Agency Office 
  810 Vaca Valley Parkway, Suite 203 
  Vacaville 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 4. CLOSED SESSION 
  
  Section 54957(b) - Public Employee Appointment: General Manager 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
  Limited to 5 minutes for any one item not scheduled on the Agenda. 
 
 6. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

  (A) (A)  Minutes:  Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors   
   meeting of April 9, 2015 is recommended. 
 
 (B)       Expenditure Approvals:  Approval of the April checking account  
  register is recommended.   
 
  (C) Authorize Contract with Summers Engineering, Inc. for the PSC  

 Headworks Improvement Project: Authorize General Manager to 
execute a contract, of $150,000, with Summers Engineering, Inc. for  
engineering support for the Putah South Canal Headworks 
Improvement Project. 

 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
Chair: 
Director Dale Crossley 
Reclamation District No. 2068 
 
Vice Chair: 
Supervisor Erin Hannigan 
Solano County District 1 
 
Mayor Len Augustine 
City of Vacaville 
 
Mayor Jack Batchelor 
City of Dixon 
 
Mayor Osby Davis  
City of Vallejo 
 
Director John D. Kluge 
Solano Irrigation District 
 
Mayor Elizabeth Patterson 
City of Benicia 
 
Mayor Harry Price 
City of Fairfield 
 
Mayor Norm Richardson 
City of Rio Vista 
 
Director Gene Robben  
Maine Prairie Water District 
 
Mayor Pete Sanchez 
City of Suisun City 
 
Supervisor Linda Seifert 
Solano County District 2 
 
Supervisor Jim Spering  
Solano County District 3 
 
Supervisor Skip Thomson 
Solano County District 5 
 
Supervisor John Vasquez 
Solano County District 4 
 
 
INTERIM GENERAL 
MANAGER: 
 
Thomas L. Pate, PE 
Solano County Water Agency 
 
 
 
 



Board of Directors Meeting Page 2 
Agenda – May 14, 2015 
 

 
 

 (D) LPCCC:  Putah Creek Floodplain Restoration Project: Authorize General  
Manager to execute an agreement for $388,199 with Four M Contracting, Inc., the 
lowest, responsible bidder, for Putah Creek Floodplain Restoration (Phase 3).  

 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS   

  
 RECOMMENDATION:  For information only. 
 
8.         GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  For information only. 
 
9. GENERAL MANAGER APPOINTMENT 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve agreement for General Manager Services 
 

10.        FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 BUDGET PROJECTIONS 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Accept staff report on year end budget projections for Fiscal Year 
2014-2015.  

 
11. DELTA ISSUES 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Hear report from Supervisor Thomson on activities of the Delta 
Counties Coalition and Delta Protection Commission. 

 
12. TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING 
  

Thursday, June 11, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. at the SCWA offices.  
 
 

The Full Board of Directors packet with background materials for each agenda 
item can be viewed on the Agency’s website at www.scwa2.com.  

 
 

Any materials related to items on this agenda distributed to the Board of Directors of Solano County Water Agency less than 72 hours before the 
public meeting are available for public inspection at the Agency’s offices located at the following address: 810 Vaca Valley Parkway, Suite 203, 
Vacaville, CA 95688.  Upon request, these materials may be made available in an alternative format to persons with disabilities. 
 
May.2015.bod.agd 

http://www.scwa2.com/


 
CONSENT ITEMS 



 SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: April 9, 2015 
 
The Solano County Water Agency Board of Directors met this evening at the Solano 
County Water Agency.  Present were: 

 
 
Supervisor Erin Hannigan, Solano County District 1 
Supervisor John Vasquez, Solano County District 4 
Supervisor Skip Thomson, Solano County District 5 
Mayor Len Augustine, City of Vacaville  
Mayor Pete Sanchez, City of Suisun City 
Mayor Elizabeth Patterson, City of Benicia 
Mayor Osby Davis, City of Vallejo 
Mayor Norm Richardson, City of Rio Vista 
Mayor Jack Batchelor, City of Dixon 
Councilmember Chuck Timm, City of Fairfield 
Director J. D. Kluge, Solano Irrigation District 
Director Dale Crossley, Reclamation District 2068 
Manager Don Holdener, Maine Prairie Water District 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 P.M. by Chairman Crossley.  
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
On a motion by Mayor Patterson and a second by Mayor Richardson the Board 
unanimously approved the agenda. 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
The Board moved into closed session at 6:31 PM to discuss Public Employee Appointment: 
General Manager in accordance with Section 54957(b). The closed session ended at 7:57 
PM with no reportable actions. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
There were no public comments.  

 
CONSENT ITEMS 

 
On a motion by Mayor Patterson and a second by Mayor Sanchez the Board unanimously 
approved the following Consent Items: 
 

(A) Minutes 
(B) Expenditure Approvals 
(C) Putah South Canal Headworks Improvement Project 
(D) CalPERS Pay Schedule 
(E) Amendment No. 1 to Agreement with GHD Inc. for Grant Administration of the 

Proposition 84 Bay Area IRWMP Grant 
 

 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 

 
Director Crossley informed the Board that members of the Legislative Committee 
(Crossley and Kluge) with GM Okita met with Assemblyman Levine. 

 



SCWA Board Meeting 
Minutes – March 12, 2015  Page 2 

 
 
 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
GM Okita updated the Board on evolving information on the recent emergency 
conservation regulation declared by the State. The Board has produced a water 
conservation report showing a comparative level of conservation achieved by each 
supplier to date.  The information presented in the report is used to determine a tiered 
approach of additional conservation that will be required of each supplier to meet the 
statewide 25% goal. Those with good progress have a lower (as low as 10%) target than 
those with poor progress (up to 35%). The report is available on the State Boards website. 
Our local suppliers are evaluating the results. 

 
GENERAL MANAGER CONTINUITY 

 
On a motion by Mayor Patterson and a second by Mayor Richardson the Board 
unanimously approved Resolution Number 2015-2 “Authorizing the Hiring of David Okita 
as a Retired Annuitant to Serve as General Manager”; and the appointment of Thomas Pate, 
Principle Water Resources Engineer as Interim General Manager under the stipulated 
conditions. 
 

SCWA AUDIT 
 
On a motion by Mayor Batchelor with a second by Mayor Patterson the Board unanimously 
approved to accept the fiscal year 2013-2014 audit. 

 
DELTA ISSUES 

 
No Report. 
 

TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting will be Thursday, May 14, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. in the 
Berryessa Room located at the Solano County Water Agency offices.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

This meeting of the Solano County Water Agency Board of Directors was adjourned at 8:08 
p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 

       Thomas L. Pate 
       Interim General Manager & Secretary to the 
       Solano County Water Agency 
 

Apr.2014.BOD.min   A-16 





5/7/15 at 09:13:40.25 Page: 1

SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2015 to Apr 30, 2015

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/2/15 100176 2023AC FSA REMIBURSEMENT MARCH 2015 245.00

1020SC PATE, THOMAS 245.00

4/2/15 25885 2020SC Invoice: 0072426 1,946.00
2020SC Invoice: 0072696 6,331.50
2020SC Invoice: 0072425 295.00
1020SC BSK ASSOCIATES 8,572.50

4/2/15 25886 2020SC Invoice: ND38870 17.51
2020SC Invoice: TB43998 479.02
1020SC CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 461.51

4/2/15 25887 2020SC Invoice: 15-206-V FEB 2015 51,094.00
2020SC Invoice: 15-024-O APR 2015 3,115.00
2020SC Invoice: 15-026-T APR 2015 407,504.00
1020SC DEPARTMENT OF WATER

RESOURCES
359,525.00

4/2/15 25888 2020SC Invoice: 2-975-06602 402.22
1020SC FEDEX EXPRESS 402.22

4/2/15 25889 2020SC Invoice: V3329102 11,466.58
1020SC HOLT OF CALIFORNIA 11,466.58

4/2/15 25890 2020SC Invoice: CL81898 868.87
1020SC INTERSTATE OIL COMPANY 868.87

4/2/15 25891 2020SC Invoice: 1379 4,817.00
1020SC IRON SPRINGS CORPORATION 4,817.00

4/2/15 25892 2020SC Invoice: 136156 29,391.07
1020SC LSA ASSOCIATES, INC. 29,391.07

4/2/15 25893 2020SC Invoice: MARCH 2015 96.00
1020SC RICHARD MAROVICH 96.00

4/2/15 25894 2020SC Invoice: 131868 296.66
1020SC MARTIN'S METAL FABRICATION & 296.66

4/2/15 25895 2020SC Invoice: 15-03-3868 3,066.50
1020SC MBK ENGINEERS 3,066.50

4/2/15 25896 2020SC Invoice: 58955 2,109.00
2020SC Invoice: 58929 342.00
1020SC NORMANDEAU ASSOCIATES, INC. 2,451.00

4/2/15 25897 2020SC Invoice: 178936 38.12
2020SC Invoice: 178935 20.93
2020SC Invoice: 853254 39.92
2020SC Invoice: 179808 24.14
2020N Invoice: 853882 42.03
2020SC Invoice: 179607 12.62
2020SC Invoice: 179630 13.95
2020SC Invoice: 854053 43.07
1020SC PACIFIC ACE HARDWARE 234.78

4/2/15 25898 2020SC Invoice: 000742426-7 8,310.00
1020SC PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO, 8,310.00

4/2/15 25899 2020SC Invoice: FEB - MAR 2015 149.20
1020SC PATE, THOMAS 149.20

4/2/15 25900 2020SC Invoice: 45034693 980.93
2020SC Invoice: 45036373 77.67
1020SC SBS LEASING A PROGRAM DE

LAGE
1,058.60

4/2/15 25901 2020SC Invoice: 006492990046APR2015 1,246.63
1020SC STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 1,246.63

4/2/15 25902 2020SC Invoice: 1273491371 51.13
2020SC Invoice: 1273118181 189.69
2020SC Invoice: 1265192661 46.91
2020SC Invoice: 5863 56.90
1020SC STAPLES 344.63



5/7/15 at 09:13:40.70 Page: 2

SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2015 to Apr 30, 2015

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/2/15 25903 2020SC Invoice: NAWCA 401 CERT 2015 200.00
1020SC STATE WATER RESOURCES

CONTROL BOARD
200.00

4/2/15 25904 2020N Invoice: INSPECTION TR2015 7,854.00
1020SC CITY OF VALLEJO 7,854.00

4/2/15 25905 2020SC Invoice: SCWA-FY2014-15_7 11,210.33
2020SC Invoice: LPCCC-FY2014-15_7 3,943.59
1020SC WILDLIFE SURVEY 15,153.92

4/2/15 25906 2020SC Invoice: 90417 68.00
2020SC Invoice: 90418 6,511.00
1020SC GHD, INC. 6,579.00

4/2/15 25907 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - KAWAZO 885.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 885.00

4/2/15 25908 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - KONOSK 2,000.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 2,000.00

4/2/15 25909 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - LUKSAN 2,000.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 2,000.00

4/2/15 25910 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - O'DONE 864.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 864.00

4/2/15 25911 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - TRUMBU 1,049.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 1,049.00

4/2/15 25912 2020SC Invoice: POLAR 2004 52.00
1020SC DMV RENEWAL 52.00

4/2/15 25913 2020SC Invoice: 664967 25.16
2020SC Invoice: 664966 15.04
2020SC Invoice: 665442 12.89
2020SC Invoice: 666411 54.02
2020SC Invoice: 667603 66.66
1020SC PISANIS AUTO PARTS 173.77

4/9/15 25914 2020SC Invoice: 0345244 1,461.11
1020SC CB&T/ACWA-JPIA 1,461.11

4/9/15 25915 2020SC Invoice: 1911775 514.07
1020SC AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION 514.07

4/9/15 25916 2020SC Invoice: 97862 1,519.00
1020SC ANALYTICAL SCIENCES 1,519.00

4/9/15 25917 2020SC Invoice: 0708958 1,420.40
1020SC ARCADIS U.S., INC. 1,420.40

4/9/15 25918 2020SC Invoice: 30354 /1 155.45
1020SC CALIFORNIA SURVEYING &

DRAFTIN
155.45

4/9/15 25919 2020SC Invoice: 3/23/15 - 4/22/15 139.04
1020SC AT&T MOBILITY 139.04

4/9/15 25920 2020SC Invoice: 1849 3,150.00
1020SC FAZZARI LANDSCAPE

CONSTRUCTION
3,150.00

4/9/15 25921 2020SC Invoice: WS06330 83,796.73
1020SC GARTON TRACTOR, INC. 83,796.73

4/9/15 25922 2020SC Invoice: 3-(15) 880.00
1020SC DENNIS GRUNSTAD 880.00

4/9/15 25923 2020SC Invoice: 76990 562.53
2020SC Invoice: 76991 64.26
2020SC Invoice: 77240 5,100.00
2020SC Invoice: 1079-048 MAR 2015 62.46
1020SC HERUM \ CRABTREE \ SUNTAG 5,789.25



5/7/15 at 09:13:40.70 Page: 3

SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2015 to Apr 30, 2015

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/9/15 25924 2020SC Invoice: 9013843 46.66
2020SC Invoice: 2014693 53.87
2020SC Invoice: 5023646 50.96
1020SC HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE 151.49

4/9/15 25925 2020SC Invoice: 63100256773 988.38
1020SC LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 988.38

4/9/15 25926 2020SC Invoice: 469957 144.00
1020SC M&M SANITARY LLC 144.00

4/9/15 25927 2020SC Invoice: 480341358 104.86
2020SC Invoice: 480343194 124.85
2020SC Invoice: 480342285 100.86
2020SC Invoice: 480344144 104.86
2020SC Invoice: 480345076 96.86
1020SC MISSION LINEN SUPPLY 532.29

4/9/15 25928 2020SC Invoice: 0007417068-1 150.00
1020SC PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO, 150.00

4/9/15 25929 2020SC Invoice: 0160244 20.00
1020SC PETRILLO'S TIRE AND AUTO

SERVICE
20.00

4/9/15 25930 2020SC Invoice: JAN - FEB 2015 25,532.75
1020SC PUTAH CREEK COUNCIL 25,532.75

4/9/15 25931 2020SC Invoice: TRAVEL REIMB 3.26.15 307.70
1020SC DAVID HICKMAN 307.70

4/9/15 25932 2020SC Invoice: 1075 1,500.00
1020SC ROCK STEADY JUGGLING 1,500.00

4/9/15 25933 2020SC Invoice: 30223 38.05
1020SC STERLING MAY CO. 38.05

4/9/15 25934 2020SC Invoice: 2729000 305.95
2020SC Invoice: 38669 66.01
2020SC Invoice: 38699 197.53
2020SC Invoice: 38594 146.47
2020SC Invoice: 38639 81.06
2020N Invoice: 38859 500.95
2020SC Invoice: 38743 75.21
2020SC Invoice: 38745 19.69
2020SC Invoice: 39020 24.75
2020SC Invoice: 273542 395.46
2020SC Invoice: 38877 297.58
1020SC SUISUN VALLEY FRUIT GROWERS

AS
2,110.66

4/9/15 25935 1020SC VOID

4/9/15 25936 2020SC Invoice: 001327 1,319.25
1020SC UNAVCO, INC. 1,319.25

4/9/15 25937 2020SC Invoice: 30002 200.00
1020SC VISION TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS,

LLC DBC
200.00

4/9/15 25938 2020SC Invoice: 150244 105.91
1020SC WATERMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. 105.91

4/9/15 25939 2020SC Invoice: 90548 98.25
1020SC GHD, INC. 98.25

4/9/15 25940 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - NEWTON 493.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 493.00

4/9/15 25941 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - OLIVIE 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 1,000.00

4/9/15 25942 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - HARAN 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 1,000.00

4/9/15 25943 2020SC Invoice: 157665 2,172.30



5/7/15 at 09:13:40.72 Page: 4

SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2015 to Apr 30, 2015

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

1020SC AYRES ASSOCIATES 2,172.30

4/9/15 25944 2020SC Invoice: 7130 4,996.49
1020SC VACAVILLE TRAILER SALES 4,996.49

4/16/15 25945 2020SC Invoice: 01.01.15 - 03.31.15 3,603.91
1020SC ACWA/JPIA POWER INSURANCE

AUTHORITY
3,603.91

4/16/15 25946 2020SC Invoice: 9536971 148.99
1020SC ARAMARK REFRESHMENT

SERVICES
148.99

4/16/15 25947 2020SC Invoice: GM RECRT MAR 2015 113.80
2020SC Invoice: APR 2015 PER DIEM 113.80
1020SC JACK BATCHELOR 227.60

4/16/15 25948 2020SC Invoice: 4012859 4,483.50
1020SC CH2M HILL 4,483.50

4/16/15 25949 2020SC Invoice: GM RECRT MAR 2015 137.38
2020SC Invoice: APR 2015 PER DIEM 134.50
1020SC DALE CROSSLEY 271.88

4/16/15 25950 2020SC Invoice: APR 2015 PER DIEM 129.90
1020SC OSBY DAVIS 129.90

4/16/15 25951 2020SC Invoice: APR 2015 PER DIEM 108.05
1020SC DON HOLDENER 108.05

4/16/15 25952 2020SC Invoice: 1383 4,817.00
1020SC IRON SPRINGS CORPORATION 4,817.00

4/16/15 25953 2020SC Invoice: APR 2015 PER DIEM 100.00
1020SC JOHN D. KLUGE 100.00

4/16/15 25954 2020SC Invoice: APR 2015 PER DIEM 135.08
1020SC ELIZABETH PATTERSON 135.08

4/16/15 25955 2020SC Invoice: 0003239 113,938.22
1020SC SOLANO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 113,938.22

4/16/15 25956 2020SC Invoice: GM RECRT MAR 2015 100.00
1020SC JAMES SPERING 100.00

4/16/15 25957 2020SC Invoice: 1255224 129.95
2020SC Invoice: 1255225 394.03
2020SC Invoice: 1253128 181.86
2020SC Invoice: 1253127 94.61
1020SC THE TREMONT GROUP, INC. 800.45

4/16/15 25958 2020SC Invoice: APR 2015 PER DIEM 100.00
1020SC JOHN VASQUEZ 100.00

4/16/15 25959 2020SC Invoice: 0003270 118.63
2020SC Invoice: 0003269 21,669.64
1020SC SOLANO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 21,788.27

4/16/15 25960 2020SC Invoice: APR 2015 PER DIEM 120.13
1020SC CHUCK TIMM 120.13

4/16/15 25961 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - HOFFMA 731.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 731.00

4/16/15 25962 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - SCHAFF 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 1,000.00

4/21/15 25963 2020SC Invoice: 168659 203.00
1020SC A & L WESTERN AGRICULTURAL

LABS
203.00

4/21/15 25964 2020SC Invoice: 6479856 182.47
2020SC Invoice: 6479857 234.19
1020SC AT&T 416.66

4/21/15 25965 2020SC Invoice: BA3896 1,506.25



5/7/15 at 09:13:40.73 Page: 5

SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2015 to Apr 30, 2015

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

1020SC BLANKINSHIP & ASSOCIATES, INC. 1,506.25

4/21/15 25966 2020SC Invoice: MARCH 2015 5,400.00
1020SC CLEAN TECH ADVOCATES 5,400.00

4/21/15 25967 2020SC Invoice: G1-2015-207 8,006.00
1020SC CALIFORNIA URBAN WATER 8,006.00

4/21/15 25968 2020N Invoice: 40539 1,693.47
2020N Invoice: 40537 7,149.95
1020SC ELECTRIC & GAS INDUSTRIES

ASSOC.
8,843.42

4/21/15 25969 1020SC VOID

4/21/15 25970 2020SC Invoice: 15636126-3 192.64
1020SC EXPRESS EMPLOYEMENT

PROFESSIONALS
192.64

4/21/15 25971 2020SC Invoice: 3737 20,060.06
1020SC EYASCO, INC. 20,060.06

4/21/15 25972 2020SC Invoice: 21921 77,299.50
1020SC HOGAN MFG. INC. 77,299.50

4/21/15 25973 2020SC Invoice: CL83246 1,435.72
1020SC INTERSTATE OIL COMPANY 1,435.72

4/21/15 25974 1020SC VOID

4/21/15 25975 2020SC Invoice: 72626 2,790.88
1020SC INTEGRATED ENVIRONMENTAL

RESTORATION
2,790.88

4/21/15 25976 2020SC Invoice: 12856 330.00
1020SC KC ENGINEERING COMPANY 330.00

4/21/15 25977 2020SC Invoice: 63100258303 469.92
1020SC LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 469.92

4/21/15 25978 2020SC Invoice: 30609 828.75
1020SC LUHDORFF & SCALMANINI 828.75

4/21/15 25979 2020SC Invoice: 131945 74.43
1020SC MARTIN'S METAL FABRICATION & 74.43

4/21/15 25980 2020SC Invoice: 59122 5,349.22
1020SC NORMANDEAU ASSOCIATES, INC. 5,349.22

4/21/15 25981 2020SC Invoice: 0161029 1,849.64
1020SC PETRILLO'S TIRE AND AUTO

SERVICE
1,849.64

4/21/15 25982 2020SC Invoice: 37791324 267.29
1020SC RECOLOGY VACAVILLE SOLANO 267.29

4/21/15 25983 2020SC Invoice: 004585 75.56
1020SC SAM'S CLUB 75.56

4/21/15 25984 2020SC Invoice: 0003271 24,476.37
1020SC SOLANO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 24,476.37

4/21/15 25985 2020SC Invoice: 20902-33 18,162.05
2020SC Invoice: 20902-32 35,124.52
1020SC THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY

OF CA
53,286.57

4/21/15 25986 2020SC Invoice: 10129 85.17
2020SC Invoice: 9940 180.15
2020SC Invoice: 10001 98.42
1020SC VACAVILLE TRAILER SALES 363.74

4/21/15 25987 2020SC Invoice: 90773 3,868.75
2020SC Invoice: 90683 1,596.00
1020SC GHD, INC. 5,464.75



5/7/15 at 09:13:40.75 Page: 6

SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2015 to Apr 30, 2015

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/21/15 25988 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - JONE 1,872.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 1,872.00

4/21/15 25989 2020N Invoice: 16199 980.92
2020N Invoice: 16120 1,104.30
1020SC CENTRAL VALLEY EQUIPMENT

REPAIR
2,085.22

4/21/15 25990 2020SC Invoice: 0331150228 3,052.50
1020SC SHANDAM CONSULTING 3,052.50

4/21/15 25991 2020SC Invoice: 4766 29,781.35
1020SC CLEAN LAKES, INC. 29,781.35

4/21/15 25992 2020SC Invoice: 15281 9,827.53
2020SC Invoice: 15279 2,137.90
1020SC SUMMERS ENGINEERING, INC. 11,965.43

4/27/15 25993 2020SC Invoice: TURF REBATE - BYERS 896.00
1020SC TURF REBATE PROGRAM 896.00

4/27/15 25994 2020SC Invoice: NAWCA STREAMBED FEE 1,833.25
1020SC CALIFORNIA DEPT. OF FISH AND

WILDLIFE
1,833.25

4/27/15 25995 2020SC Invoice: 34206 869.00
1020SC SOLANO SIGNS 869.00

4/27/15 25996 2020SC Invoice: CCE0000294261 2,220.00
1020SC CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY,

SACRAMENTO
2,220.00

4/27/15 25997 2020SC Invoice: 15-04-3868 1,804.00
1020SC MBK ENGINEERS 1,804.00

4/27/15 25998 2020SC Invoice: 1865 1,120.00
1020SC BRYCE CONSULTING, INC. 1,120.00

4/25/15 BARICH MAR 2015 6360AC LORMAN EDUCATION SERVICE -
PRINCIPLES OF CONSTRUCTION
INSURANCE

175.20

6310AC CHEVRON - FUEL 33.79
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 208.99

4/25/15 CUETARA MAR 2015 6144SC AMAZON PRIME MEMBERSHIP 106.80
6310AC CHEVRON - FUEL 88.02
6300AC PASANI'S AUTO PARTS - SUPPLIES 36.10
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 230.92

4/3/15 EFT 2020SC Invoice: APR HEALTH 2015 14,474.87
1020SC CALPERS 14,474.87

4/3/15 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 2/11/2015-3/12/2015 715.43
1020SC PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO, 715.43

4/3/15 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 2015040101 145.45
1020SC PAYCHEX, INC. 145.45

4/10/15 EFT 6111AC FSA ADMIN FEES - APRIL 2015 106.75

1020SC PAYCHEX, INC. 106.75

4/15/15 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 44008126 98.19
1020SC CHEVRON AND TEXACO 98.19

4/11/15 EFT 2024AC EMPLOYEE LIABILITIES - 4.11.15 8,191.82
6012AC EMPLOYER LIABILITIES - 4.11.15 1,499.50
1020SC PAYROLL TAXES 9,691.32

4/11/15 EFT 2020SC Invoice: PPE 4.11.15 10,200.08
1020SC CALPERS 10,200.08

4/11/15 EFT 2020SC Invoice: SIP 4.11.15 7,990.83
1020SC CALPERS 7,990.83

4/11/15 EFT 2020SC Invoice: PEPRA PPE 4.11.15 336.65



5/7/15 at 09:13:40.75 Page: 7

SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2015 to Apr 30, 2015

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

1020SC CALPERS 336.65

4/11/15 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 2015041501 176.60
1020SC PAYCHEX, INC. 176.60

4/16/15 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 9743016093 2,033.13
1020SC VERIZON WIRELESS 2,033.13

4/25/15 EFT 2024AC EMPLOYEE LIABILITIES - 4.25.15 71,531.78
6012AC EMPLOYER LIABILITIES - 4.25.15 3,723.25
1020SC PAYROLL TAXES 75,255.03

4/25/15 FLORENDO MAR 2015 6551AC LA BOU 221 - LUNCH 10.04
6330AC CITYOFSAC PARKING 15.00
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 25.04

4/25/15 FOWLER MAR 2015 6230SC PAYPAL DGJ INC - CHAINSAW
WHEELS

231.80

6230SC NOR NORTHERN TOOL - OIL
CHANGING SYSTEM

43.87

6230SC BERRYESSA SPORTING GOOD -
PROPANE

20.00

6042AC HIGH ALTITUDE 2U - AEROSOL 103.39
2025SC ACCRUED SALES TAX - PAYPAL

DGJ INC
16.30

2025SC ACCRUED SALES TAX - NOR
NORTHERN TOOL

3.15

2025SC ACCRUED SALES TAX - HIGH
ALTITUSE 2U

7.55

1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 372.06

4/25/15 JONES MARCH 2015 6190SC RECOLOGY ENC SOLUTIONS -
DUMP RUN

193.05

6199SC BEST BUY MHT - SUPPLIES 21.56
6310AC BERRYESSA SPORTING GOOD -

FUEL
76.97

6310AC BERRYESSA SPORTING GOOD -
FUEL

98.64

6190SC PISANI'S SERVICE LLC - PROPANE 11.40
6199SC STAPLES - SUPPLIES 54.76
6199SC HAEBOR FREIGHT TOOLS - TOOLS 69.40
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 525.78

4/25/15 LEE MAR 2015 6410AC CRUCIAL.COM - MEMORY 80.18
6360AC DOUBLETREE - MITIGATION

SUMMIT MEETING
8.00

6040AC PUTAH CREEK CAFE - PDO IT
MEETING

44.00

6112AC NAMES4EVER - DOMAIN
SCWA2.COM

35.00

1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 167.18

4/25/15 MAROVICH MAR 2015 6181SC CHEVRON - FUEL 33.76
6199SC STAPLES - SUPPLIES 47.76
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 81.52

4/25/15 OKITA MAR 2015 6330AC CITY OF SAC PARKING 6.00
6330AC HYATT REGENCY SAC - PARKING 17.50
6330AC CITY OF SAC PARKING 5.00
6330AC CITY OF SAC PARKING 12.00
6040AC NUGGET MARKET - PASTRIES FOR

GM RECRUITMENT COMMITTEE
15.44

1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 55.94

4/25/15 PATE MAR 2015 6161N BUCKS BAGS - SUPPLIES 487.00
6041AC AMAZON.COM - SUPPLIES

RETURNED
25.88

6310AC LEISURE TOWN - FUEL 27.46
6040AC DOMINICK'S NY PIZZA - IEP LUNCH 10.83
6040AC PIZZERIA CLASSICO - IEP LUNCH 17.01
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 516.42

4/25/15 PHILLIPS MARCH 2015 6040AC PAYPAL DVBSR - SUPPLIES 31.28
6040AC ACCRUED TAX - PAYPAL DVBSR 2.28
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 29.00



5/7/15 at 09:13:40.76 Page: 8

SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2015 to Apr 30, 2015

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/25/15 RABIDOUX MAR 2015 6144N WHOLESALEMA - NEW FLOATS
FOR BSPP

134.09

6144N LOWES - HOSE CLAMPS FOR NEW
FLOATS

8.37

2025SC ACCRUED SALES TAX -
WHOLESALEMA

9.06

1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 133.40

4/25/15 SNYDER MAR 2015 6199SC LOWES - SUPPLIES 45.13
6300AC AGILIS LINXUP MOTOSFTY -

VEHICLE TRACKING
91.96

6230SC PACIFIC COAST HARDWARE -
SUPPLIES

21.48

1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 158.57

Total 1,215,497.99 1,215,497.99







  

Name of Project:  PSC Headworks Improvement - Eng. Construction Support 
 
 
 SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
    
 AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, effective May 14, 2015, is between SOLANO COUNTY WATER 
AGENCY, a public agency existing under and by virtue of Chapter 573 of the 1989 statutes of 
the State of California, hereinafter referred to as "Agency," and Summers Engineering, Inc., 
hereinafter referred to as "Contractor." 
 
The Agency requires services for PSC Headworks Improvement - Eng. Construction 
Support; and the Contractor is willing to perform these services pursuant to the terms and 
conditions set out in this Agreement. 
 
IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED, as follows: 
 
 
l. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
  The Agency hereby engages the Contractor, and the Contractor agrees to perform the 
services for PSC Headworks Improvement - Eng. Construction Support, as described in 
Exhibit A, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and any applicable laws, codes, 
ordinances, rules or regulations.  In case of conflict between any part of this Agreement, this 
Agreement shall control over any Exhibit. 
 
 
2. COMPENSATION 
 
  Compensation for services shall be as follows:  Hourly rate of personnel plus any 
allowed reimbursable expenses based on unit costs as indicated on any allowed reimbursable 
expense in Exhibit B not to exceed $130,000 for all work contemplated by this Agreement.  
 
 
3. METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 
  Upon submission of an invoice by the Contractor, and upon approval of the Agency's 
representative, the Agency shall pay the Contractor monthly in arrears for fees and allowed 
expenses incurred the prior month, up to the maximum amount provided for in paragraph 2 of 
this Agreement.  Every invoice shall specify hours worked for each task identified in Exhibit A 
undertaken. 
 
 Each invoice shall be accompanied by a spreadsheet showing, by month, costs incurred to 
date for the project broken down by the Tasks identified in Exhibit A.  The spreadsheet shall 
show, for each task, budget amounts, total expended and remaining amounts.  The spreadsheet 
shall show a subtotal for each fiscal year covered by the contract. Any amendments to the 
contract shall be listed and incorporated into spreadsheet.  An example of a typical spreadsheet 
shall be provided by the Agency.    



  

 
4. TIME OF PERFORMANCE 
 
  This Agreement shall become effective as of the date it is executed and said services will 
take place between this date and June 30, 2016 as directed by the Agency. 
 
 
5. MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION 
 
 This Agreement may be modified or amended only by written instrument signed by the 
parties hereto, and the Contractor's compensation and time of performance of this Agreement 
shall be adjusted if they are materially affected by such modification or amendment. 
 
 This Agreement may be terminated by the Agency at any time, without cause, upon 
written notification to the Contractor.  The Contractor may terminate this Agreement upon 30 
days written notice to Agency. 
 
 Following termination by the Agency or the Contractor, the Contractor shall be 
reimbursed for all expenditures made in good faith in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement that are unpaid at the time of termination. 
 
 
6. INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS 
 
 When the law establishes a professional standard of care for the Contractor's 
services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor will defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Agency, its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers from all 
claims and demands of all persons arising out of the performance (or actual or alleged non-
performance) of the work under this agreement, for damages to persons or property due to 
the Contractor's negligent or willful acts, errors or omissions committed.  Contractor shall 
defend itself against any and all liabilities, claims, losses, damages, and costs arising out of 
or alleged to arise out of Contractor's performance or non-performance of the work 
hereunder, and shall not tender such claims to Agency nor to its directors, officers, 
employees, or authorized volunteers, for defense or indemnity. 
 
 Other than in the performance of professional services, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, Contractor will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Agency, its 
directors, officers, employees or authorized volunteers from all claims and demands of all 
persons arising out the performance of the work or furnishing of materials; including but 
not limited to, claims by the Contractor or Contractor's employees for damages to persons 
or property except for the sole negligence or willful misconduct or active negligence of the 
Agency, its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers. 
 
 
  



  

7. INSURANCE 
 

By his/her signature hereunder, Contractor certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions 
of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured 
against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and that Contractor will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the professional services under this agreement.  Contractor and 
sub-contractors will keep workers’ compensation insurance for their employees in effect during 
all work covered by this agreement. 
 
 Contractor will file with the Agency, before beginning professional services, a certificate 
of insurance satisfactory to the Agency evidencing professional liability coverage of not less than 
$1,000,000 per claim and annual aggregate, requiring 30 days notice of cancellation (10 days for 
non-payment of premium) to the Agency.  Any insurance, self-insurance or other coverage 
maintained by the Agency, its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers shall not 
contribute to it.  Coverage is to be placed with a carrier with an A.M. Best rating of no less than 
A-:VII, or equivalent, or as otherwise approved by the Agency.  The retroactive date (if any) is to 
be no later than the effective date of this agreement.  In the event that the Contractor employs 
other contractors (sub-contractors) as part of the work covered by this agreement, it shall be the 
Contractor's responsibility to require and confirm that each sub-contractor meets the minimum 
insurance requirements specified above. 
 

Contractor will file with the Agency, before beginning professional services, certificates 
of insurance satisfactory to the Agency evidencing general liability coverage of not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence ($2,000,000 general and products-completed operations aggregate (if 
used)) for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage; auto liability of at least 
$1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage each accident limit; workers’ compensation 
(statutory limits) and employer’s liability ($1,000,000) (if applicable); requiring 30 days (10 days 
for non-payment of premium) notice of cancellation to the Agency.  Any insurance, self-
insurance or other coverage maintained by the Agency, its directors, officers, employees, or 
authorized volunteers shall not contribute to it.  Coverage is to be placed with a carrier with an 
A.M. Best rating of no less than A- :VII, or equivalent, or as otherwise approved by the Agency.  
In the event that the Contractor employs other contractors (sub-contractors) as part of the work 
covered by this agreement, it shall be the Contractor's responsibility to require and confirm that 
each sub-contractor meets the minimum insurance requirements specified above. 
 
 If any of the required coverages expire during the term of this agreement, the Contractor 
shall deliver the renewal certificate(s) including the general liability additional insured 
endorsement to the Agency at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date. 
 
 
8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 
 
 The Contractor shall be subject to and comply with all federal, state and local laws and 
regulations applicable with respect to its performance under this Agreement, including but not 
limited to, licensing, employment and purchasing practices; and wages, hours and conditions of 
employment. 



  

9. RECORD RETENTION 
 
 Except for materials and records, delivered to the Agency, the Contractor shall retain all 
materials and records prepared or obtained in the performance of this Agreement, including 
financial records, for a period of at least three years after the Contractor's receipt of the final 
payment under this Agreement.  Upon request by the Agency, the Contractor shall make such 
materials and records available to the Agency at no additional charge and without restriction or 
limitation to State and federal governments at no additional charge. 
 
 
10. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS  
 
 All materials and records of a finished nature, such as final plans, specifications, reports 
and maps, prepared or obtained in the performance of this Agreement, shall be delivered to and 
become the property of the Agency.  All materials of a preliminary nature, such as survey notes, 
sketches, preliminary plans, computations and other data, prepared or obtained in the 
performance of this Agreement, shall be made available, upon request, to the Agency at no 
additional charge and without restriction or limitation on their use. 
 
 
11. SUBCONTRACT AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
  This Agreement binds the heirs, successors, assigns and representatives of the 
Contractor.  The Contractor shall not enter into subcontracts for any work contemplated under 
this Agreement and shall not assign this Agreement or monies due or to become due, without the 
prior written consent of the General Manager of the Agency or his designee, subject to any 
required state or federal approval. 
 
 
12. NONRENEWAL  
 
 The Contractor understands and agrees that there is no representation, implication, or 
understanding that the services provided by the Contractor under this Agreement will be 
purchased by the Agency under a new agreement following expiration or termination of this 
Agreement, and waives all rights or claims to notice or hearing respecting any failure to continue 
purchase of all or any such services from the Contractor. 
 
 
13. NOTICE 
 
 Any notice provided for herein are necessary to the performance of this Agreement and 
shall be given in writing by personal delivery or by prepaid first-class mail addressed as follows: 
 
 



  

         AGENCY                   CONTRACTOR 
   
Thomas L. Pate, Interim General Manager  Roger Reynolds, Vice President 
Solano County Water Agency   Summers Engineering, Inc. 
810 Vaca Valley Parkway, Suite 203   P.O. Box 1122 
Vacaville, CA  95688      Hanford, CA  93230 
           
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 The parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.  If the 
Contractor is a corporation, documentation must be provided that the person signing below for 
the Contractor has the authority to do so. 
 
Solano County Water Agency    Summers Engineering, Inc. 
a Public Agency      
 
 
 
By:                                          By: ____________________                    
        Thomas L. Pate,                                            Roger Reynolds, 
        Interim General Manager    Vice President 
                                    
 
 

AG-S-12.SummersEngr.Headworks.2015.agt.docx 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 



  

EXHIBIT B 
 

RATE OF COMPENSATION 
 









To:  City of Winters, Mayor and City Council, Board of Directors of Solano County Water Agency, 
Secretary of the California Resources Agency, Editor of Winters Express 

From:  Jeff TenPas, 24 East Main St., Winters CA  05604 

Re:  Putah Creek Nature Park – Phase III – River Parkways Grant 

 

I offer comments and suggestions on the impending Putah Creek “restoration” project in Winters and 
funded by a state River Parkways grant.  As a preface, let me say that I am a great supporter of 
watershed restoration and have worked in watershed restoration for 20 years.  For the last nine years, I 
have been the Regional Manager for the watershed restoration program of all of the 18 national forests 
in California.  I offer suggestions for a thoughtful design for this restoration project to enhance values for 
both wildlife and recreation.   

 What we know is that the current channel here in Phase 3 is providing excellent wildlife habitat and 
public recreation benefits just as it is.  This part of the creek is the only section in Winters clearly visible 
from the Creekside trail, and it provides everybody, young and old, spry and not so spry, easy viewing of 
the creek and tremendous views of wildlife including beaver and otter and heron.  Because the channel 
is as it is - wide, deep in some places, with an island, and undercut banks - it provides a diversity of 
wildlife habitat that the rest of the creek lacks.  This, the unrestored section of the creek, is prime 
habitat for otter and beaver and heron and kingfisher, which all rely on deep and slow slack water 
habitat as part of their habitat needs.  If the channel is moved and altered, the wildlife will lose the 
diversity of habitat they need, the beaver and otter will not spend time here, and the public will lose 
views of wildlife and even the creek.   

In this section, the floodplain is what needs restoration.  The channel itself is good, stable, and offers 
habitat that the rest of the creek does not, and money would not be well spent altering it.   The south 
bank floodplain is in poor condition, was used as a construction staging area, and has a stagnant pond.  
This floodplain needs restoration according to a design that focuses on riparian ecology and increases 
habitat diversity along the creek– including overflow channels and high banks and wetlands.  The 
current design for a flat featureless floodplain is not restoration.    

The funds saved by not moving the channel can be well spent on the floodplain restoration and 
revegetation.   With sufficient funds, we should include one or more pedestrian stream crossings, a 
seasonal and removable  foot bridge, that would greatly enhance recreation benefits.   

To the SCWA and the Resources Agency – I urge a pause in the rush to contracting this project and an 
immediate independent review by a team including a fisheries biologist, riparian ecologist, stream and 
restoration ecologists.  In particular, there should be review and input from professionals to these 
aspects of the plan: 

• the lack of habitat diversity and complexity in the floodplain design– including back swamps, 
overflow channels, oxbows, or natural levees.  The current design is a flat and featureless. 



• the lack of habitat diversity and complexity in the channel – including deep and wide sections 
with slack water.   

• the lack of pools suitable for recreation and swimming 
• the lack of high and undercut banks suitable for beaver and otter dens and kingfisher nesting 

and valuable as fish habitat 

I regret to say that the preceding phases of the Putah Creek project in Winters have greatly diminished 
swimming and water contact recreation in the creek, not improved access, removed acres of mature 
native riparian forest, built a floodplain flat and almost featureless as a parking lot, and in some areas 
trees and vegetation are barely able to grow because of a heavy clay soil brought in as fill.   

Please slow the rush to contracting and give your support and direction to a thoughtful ecological review 
and redesign of this project.   

 

       











Time Period Covered:  April 2015 
 
 

REPORT OF CONSTRUCTION CHANGE ORDERS AND 
CONTRACTS APPROVED BY GENERAL MANAGER UNDER 

DELEGATED AUTHORITY 
 

 
Construction Contract Change Orders (15% of original project costs or $50,000, 
whichever is less): 
 
NONE 
 
 
Construction Contracts ($30,000 and less): 
 
Smith Inspection – Construction Inspection - $28,000 
 
 
Professional Service Agreements ($30,000 and less): 
 
Sierra Control, LLC – Water Instrumentation – extend term only. 
 
 
Non-Professional Service Agreements ($30,000 and less): 
 
NONE 
 
 
Construction contracts resulting from informal bids authorized by SCWA 
Ordinance: 
 
NONE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note:  Cumulative change orders or amendments resulting in exceeding the dollar limit 
need Board approval. 
 
 
Z:\FORMS\Construction Change Orders.doc 

 


































	May.2015.bod.agd (ID 157162)
	CONSENT ITEMS (ID 156109)
	Apr.2014.BOD.min (ID 156455)
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	May.2015.It6B (ID 158243)
	May.2015.It6B_Report (ID 158185) (ID 158186)
	May.2015.It6C (ID 158244)
	May.2015.It6C_Contract (ID 157200)
	May.2015.It6D (ID 158246)
	WPCP Letter TenPas April 26 2015-Attach.It6D (ID 157438)
	May.2015.It8 (ID 158247)
	May.2015.It8_WC (ID 158249)
	Construction Change orders (ID 155825).It8 (ID 157212)
	May.2015.It9 (ID 158250)
	May.2015.It9_FINAL GM CONTRACT-Attach (BOD Mail Only) (ID 158180)
	May.2015.It10 (ID 158251)
	May.2015.It10.YearEndProjection 14-15 (ID 157229)

